
From: Peter Eglick
To: Will Hall; Will.Hall@co.snohomish.wa.us
Cc: Debbie Tarry
Subject: Development Code Vegetation Management Plan Framework Proposal
Date: Thursday, July 10, 2014 4:36:59 PM
Attachments: Letter to City Council re VMP 071014.pdf
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Greetings Will,

 

In follow-up to an earlier Public Records Act request the City shared your July 7,
2014 e mail about upcoming Development Code amendments with us. The following
caught my eye because it mentions me specifically by name (see section highlighted
in yellow below):

 

Regarding the golf course, I would be fine exempting some of the activities that are
unique to a golf course, such as replacing bunker sand or adding and aerating
fairways.  These are similar to routine landscaping that is exempt for anyone. 
Regarding vegetation management plans, we've been down that road before.  One
full round was before I was on the planning commission, so sometime before 2004. 
I recall the former planning director (Tim, not Joe) telling us hat it did not work
well.  Then the commission worked on it along with CAR in 2004 or 2005.  I thought
we had good language, but enforcement was a concern.  I proposed language
requiring that the  city be given access to the reserves at any time for inspection
and enforcement.  I recall their attorney (Eglick) opposed that requirement and the
legislation did not pass.  He has told me since that they would support a
requirement allowing the city to have access, but I don't have any recent knowledge
of their position.  Given other priorities, absent a clear and broadly supported
consensus approach, which I do not currently see, I would not support adding it to
the work plan at this time.

 

Will, respectfully, I think this may be an example of the  “Rashomon effect”. See
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Rashomon_effect .  My (admittedly not always perfect)
recall is that the Club did not object to provisions for City inspections of Innis Arden
Reserves that would be part of  VMP or stewardship plan type legislation. An
objection like that would make no sense, because such Plans would be in essence a
form of permitting and staff typically makes site visits for permit review or
compliance monitoring. In a distinct context, a decade or so ago, City staff were
entering Club property without notice and without a Club representative present to
observe. The Club objected to that practice. That objection was not particularly
unusual: what property owner does not want to know when an inspection is
occurring on their property ? Perhaps the Club’s concern for notice wholly apart from
the stewardship plan concept somehow got confused by the City with the Club’s
position on the stewardship plan provision ? The Club supported that  without
reservation, including without reservation as to City access to plan areas.
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In any event, what happened a decade ago is water under the bridge and the Club
hopes will not be a basis for whether and how to address adoption of a VMP
framework, which is long overdue.

 

The e mail we received also alludes to a general  impression that  vegetation
management plans did not work well when tried before. What I can convey is that
the Club and the City did enter into a rudimentary, general  VMP in 1997.  From the
Club’s perspective, it worked well as far as it went. My recollection is that it
continued in effect through the tenure of Planning Director Stewart. When Joe Tovar
came in, the Club received a notice from the City that the VMP was being unilaterally
abrogated. No reasons were given. There had been a City enforcement action
against the Club, unrelated to the VMP, claiming that non-hazard trees had been
removed without approval. BUT, the City dropped that action in the face of Club
Motions to Dismiss including one pointing out that the non-hazard trees said to have
been removed were actually still very much standing (we provided photos J). As best
as we could make out, that enforcement action had been brought based on
unverified  “information” provided by Innis Arden residents who were opposed to
removal of any trees in the Club’s Reserve Tracts for any reason.

 

Another VMP, specifically for Grouse Reserve,  was prepared for the Club in 2002
and ultimately approved by the City. It has been largely implemented, successfully
as far as the Club knows.  

 

The bottom line is that the Club has long since tried to move on from past disputes
with the City. We hope the City is trying as well. The  proposed Golf Club special
Code exemption was rejected by the Planning Commission for good reason, but the
need it highlighted – for a holistic Plan framework for larger tracts – remains. Innis
Arden’s substitute proposal, attached to this e mail, provides a framework for such
plans. And, it includes provision for site inspection and annual reports. While I
understand you won’t be at the Council meeting on Monday, your opinion still very
much counts so the Club hopes you’ll take a second look and decide to support the
concept.

 

Cheers,

 

Peter

 

Peter J. Eglick

Eglick Kiker Whited PLLC
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